ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE COVMUNI TY AND REQ ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 11, 2014
8:05 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Benjam n Nageak, Co-Chair
Representati ve Neal Foster

Representati ve Bob Herron

Representative Lora Rei nbold
Representative SamKito |11

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Kurt O son

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 24

Recogni zi ng, honoring, supporting, and encouraging support

dog nushing and dog nmushers in the state.
- MOVED HCR 24 OQUT OF COW TTEE

PRESENTATI ON: | NDI AN LAW & ORDER COMM SSI ON REPORT
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

Bl LL: HCR 24

SHORT TI TLE: SUPPORTI NG DOG MJSHI NG
SPONSOR(s): COMMUNI TY & REG ONAL AFFAI RS

03/ 03/ 14 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 03/ 14 (H) CRA
03/ 11/ 14 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

JESSIE M LLER, Staff
Representati ve Neal Foster
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -1- March 11,

for

2014



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HCR 24 on behal f of Representative
Neal Foster.

DI ANA HAECKER
Nonme, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HCR 24.

AURCRA LEHR, Vice President

Al aska Federation Natives (AFN)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of the
| ndi an Law & Order Conmm ssion Report.

TROY EID, Chair

Nat i onal Indian Law & Order Comm ssion (ILQOC)

Denver, CO

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the Indian Law & Order Commi ssion
report.

M CHELLE DEW TT, Executive Director

Bet hel Community Services Foundation

Bet hel , Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of the recommendations
in the ILOC report.

JAMES HCELSCHER, First Sergeant

Village Public Safety O ficer (VPSO

Hooper Bay, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke to the needs in rural Alaska as
related to the Indian Law & Order Conmm ssion Report.

SHANNON JOHNSON- NANAL OOK

Indian Child Welfare Act (ICW)

i ama, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of the
I ndi an Law & Order Comm ssion Report.

M KE MYERS, Roving Village Public Safety Oficer (VPSO
D |'li ngham Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the chall enges faced by VPSCs.

HOLLY HANDLER, Attorney

Al aska Legal Services

Al aska Federation of Natives (AFN)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke on the Tribal Law & Order Act and the
| LOC report.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 2- March 11, 2014



ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:05:29 AM

CO CHAI R BENJAM N NAGEAK cal |l ed the House Conmunity and Regi onal
Affairs Standing Conmmittee neeting to order at 8:05 a.m
Representatives Kito 111, Foster, Reinbold, and Nageak were
present at the call to order. Representatives Herron and LeDoux
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HCR 24- SUPPORTI NG DOG MJSHI NG

8:06: 31 AM

CO CHAI R NAGEAK announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 24, Recognizing, honoring,
supporting, and encouraging support for dog nushing and dog
mushers in the state.

8:07:41 AM

JESSIE MLLER, Staff, Representative Neal Foster, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, provided the foll ow ng testinony:

Wth the first nmusher of the Iditarod Dog Sled Race
into None just a few hours ago, it is fitting that we
present this resolution. Dog nushing is the official
sport of our state. Dog nushing helped to save many
lives during the diphtheria epidemc of 1925 in None.
Dog nmushing brings thousands of Alaskans together
every year to volunteer for various races, to cheer on
its nmushers, and to welcone the nmany nore who cone
from out-of-state. W would ask the conmittee to
support HCR 24 and recognize [the sport] as a past,
present, and future culture of our state.

8:08: 50 AM

DI ANA HAECKER stated that she is married to four-tine Ilditarod
finisher, Nls Hahn, and is the nother of a budding nusher,
Lizzy Hahn, who is nine years old. She related that she is a
reporter for the None Nugget and a nusher. Four hours ago, None
greeted the 2014 Iditarod chanpion under the burled arch, and
even though she has phot ographed every w nner since 2003 and is
an avid nusher, she always chokes up when the nushers arrive in

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 3- March 11, 2014



None. These events epitonize the allure of Al aska, the dream of
the north, and the greatness of its people, she said, and what
these mushers endure captures the essence of |egends. Thi s
resolution will help preserve the joy of nushing and its culture
so her daughter and future generations wll have the right to
mush in this great state. The organi zations that have passed
this resolution in the last six nonths include the WIIlow Dog
Mushers Association, the WIlow Area Community Organi zation, the
Pioneer 1gloo Nunmber 1 in Nome, the Nome Kennel Cub, the
Association of Village Presidents, and the entire body of the

Al aska Federation of Natives. She thanked nenbers for their
consideration and said that she w shes she could adequately
convey the joy and beauty that dog mushing brings to Alaska. In

response to a question, she stated that Dallas Seavey won the
race today. She related that nusher Jeff King scratched because
the winds were so horrendous. It puts people in fear every tine
the wind starts howing, and these world-class athletes just
endured these w nds, she stated. She added that Aliy Zrkle
came in second, tw mnutes after Dallas Seavey, and she
believes that Mtch Seavey arrived just a m nute ago.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD t hanked her for her passion and |ove of
t he sport.

8:12:46 AM

CO CHAI R NAGEAK cl osed public testinony on HCR 24.

CO CHAIR LEDOQUX noved to report HCR 24 out of committee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal note.
[Hearing no objections, HCR 24 was reported from the House
Communi ty and Regi onal Affairs Standing Conmttee.]

8:.13: 24 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from8:13 a.m to 8:17 a.m

Presentation: Indian Law & Order Conm ssi on Report

8:17:16 AM

CO CHAI R NAGEAK announced that the final order of business would
be a presentation on the Indian Law & Order Comm ssion Report.

8:17:41 AM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -4- March 11, 2014



AURCRA LEHR, Vice President, Alaska Federation Natives (AFN),
noted that she also staffs the Council for the Advancenent of
Al aska Natives, a commttee of the AFN Board and conprised of
the 12 regional nonprofit service providers and sone statew de
organi zations that serve Alaska Natives. This year, one
priority J[of the council] 1is to increase public safety,
especially in rural Alaska. She noted that there is a national
spotlight on safety in Indian Country right now, particularly in
Al aska. She said there will be two presentations, and the one
today is designed to provide information to the public and the
| egislature on "where we're at and who the parties involved
are." In a few weeks, [a second presentation] wll explore sone
col | aborative recomrendati ons on how to nove forward in making
sone much- needed i nprovenents. She stated that there have been
numerous reports before, and the latest report fromthe National
I ndi an Law and Order Conmi ssion (ILOC) is very conprehensive and
is based on extensive research and testinony, and the comm ssion
chair is online to testify. The main difference in the current
report is that since Al aska faces so nmany issues, an entire
chapter has been dedicated to the state. She praised the |1LCC
for putting so nuch effort into research and for providing
recomendati ons. She added that the issues need to be addressed
at the state |evel.

8:23:41 AM

TROY EID, Chair, National Indian Law and Order Conm ssion
(ILOC), stated that the ILOC was created by a federal law in
2010, and he was appointed as a volunteer, with eight others, to
review public safety and crimnal justice issues for the 566
federal l y-recogni zed Native nations across the United States.
The group has been working in the field and spending tinme and
energy to try to understand sone of these issues. During the
course of the conm ssion's work, the group spent an entire nonth
of conbined time in the State of Alaska, he noted. About 40
percent of the federally-recognized Native nations are in
Al aska, he pointed out, and the tinme spent here has been an
honor .

8:25:23 AM

CO- CHAIR LEDOQUX inquired as to how many of the appointees on
conmi ssion are Native Anerican.

MR EID answered that of the nine nenbers of |LOC, four are

enrolled nenbers in Native tribes. There are six Denocrats and
three Republicans, he added, and he is a Republican who was

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 5- March 11, 2014



appointed by Senator Harry Reid and voted <chair by the
commi ssion nmenbers. The statute requires nine conm ssioners and
an advisory commttee. There are no Al askans or Native Al askans
on the commi ssion, he noted, but there are two advisors who were
heavily relied upon: WIson Justin and Georgi anna Lincol n.

8:27:11 AM

MR EID said the ILOC was assisted by nany great people in
Al aska. He noted that he is a former state cabinet official

from Col orado, and he was a U S. attorney under President Bush

He said the report given to the conmttee is well-wrth a read,
particularly Chapter 2. He expressed that the situation in
Alaska is very outnmoded in terns of relying on a highly
centralized, and very wasteful, policing and justice system
"that really has been bypassed by the tines.” Consi dering the
growh in Alaska and the serious issues faced, the [|LCC
recommendation is to really look at local control: Al aska should
rely nore on Native nations to enforce, conbat, and prevent
violent crine. The statistics are inportant to renenber, he
st at ed. In Al aska, victins of donestic violence are suffering
those assaults at 10 tinmes the national average, and, by sone
i ndi cations, sexual assaults are about 12 tinmes the national

average, not including that such crines are underreported. He
said that Al aska Natives have the highest rate of suicide in the
entire Western Hem sphere, and one out of every four Al aska
Native juveniles currently suffers from post-traumatic stress
di sorder, and that is the sane rate as returning conbat veterans
from Af ghani stan. This is serious, he reiterated.

MR. EID said a central system of |aw enforcenent may have nade
sense a long tinme ago, but all nine nenbers of the comm ssion
believe Alaska is on the wong track wth its centralized
system He added that not relying on |ocal governnent "to do

the heavy I|ifting" for Ilaw enforcenent contributes to the
di sproportionate rates of violent crine and, for the taxpayer,
is a "very wasteful, wasteful system"™ He continued:

W recommend quite strongly that Al aska take a | ook at

its system W |ove Al aska. W're not here to
criticize anybody, but we just have to tell you that
having |ooked at all 566 of these Native nations

around the country for the last three and a half
years, Alaska really does stand out as a system where
nmore |l ocal control would really help all of the people
in Alaska, Native and non-Native alike.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 6- March 11, 2014



8:31: 20 AM

MR EID said that I1LOC has a series of recomendations that
starts with the premise that Alaska Native nations ought to be
treated in the manner in which they really are—the way they have
existed from the beginning. They are federally recognized as
sovereigns, he said, self-governing with a specific identity
under | aw. The state of Alaska should start addressing these
i ssues on a governnent-to-governnent basis, he stressed, and
with that he is talking about respect, not about creating an
I ndian reservation system Alaska could have a nuch safer
environnment, he stated, if the legislature can take steps to
clarify the boundaries that Native nations have, work with them
and begin to take that territorial integrity as a basis for
jurisdiction, for policing, and for courts. He said:

It doesn't have to be an issue of fighting over |and
status endlessly; it's sinply a question of draw ng
boundaries that the parties can agree on and really
make | ocal |aw enforcenent do the heavy lifting. Make
sure there's a pathway into the courts, but nake sure
that all the rights that Al aska Natives have are
respected, as well as non-Natives.

MR. EID pointed out that the rest of the United States relies on
| ocal governnent and not on a strong central state governnent,
whi ch does not have the means or the legitinmacy to do this job
It is failing mserably in Al aska, he stated. He said he | ooks
forward to the day when there can be nore recognition of |oca
control, because it is in every Alaskan's interest to save that
kind of noney and to not have an environnent where Al aska spends
nore noney litigating against Native tribes than all the other
49 states conbi ned. "There's got to be a cheaper way and an
easier way, and | think its starts with that initial respect,"”
he concl uded.

8:33:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD said she has not lived in the Bush for a
long tinme, but she wants to support the efforts of |LQOC She
noted that M. E d encourages |ocal governnment, and yesterday
the Al aska House of Representatives passed |legislation armng
VPSCs [village public safety officers], which is a step in the
right direction. She noted that nany boroughs are unorgani zed,
and she asked which | ocal governnent M. Eid is referring to.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -7- March 11, 2014



MR. EID said armng VPSGs is inportant and is supported by the
commi ssion. Sone villages are in the position to do what he is
describing and sone are not, and what needs to happen is to

begin to put that question to the Native comunities. The
| egislature should have conversations on a governnent-to-
government basis, he said. |In the Lower 48, sonetines small and
renmote tribes wll band together and have intertribal |[|aw
enforcenment, courts, and such, he explained, and the state wl|l
recogni ze that. They wll work out a systemto ensure that the

boundaries are clear, but it is a comon occurrence for one
court to serve a nunber of different Native conmmunities.
Another way to deal with the issue is to have the dialogue with
smaller villages that are not ready, and to ask, "What can we do
right now to build capacity in those villages to help then?" He
said they cannot necessarily do everything but naybe they wll
eventual | y. The state should work on the capacity building,
such as building up the tribal court systens. It may entail a
program connecti ng geographic areas with a public defender, for
i nstance. He explained that the point is to get the locals to
do nore and to build the capacity with them "What we see in
Al aska—+eal | y—+s the opposite. The locals are struggling to try
to do a lot of these things, sonmetimes with great success, by
the way, but too often the state's attitude is: no, that's a
threat to the central system that we have.”" The central system
never effectively serves the role of |local I|aw enforcenent,
because the response tinmes are too long and the distances are
too great, he explained. There must be a strategy to build
| ocal control and accountability, even if it is done by regiona
groups or organi zations taking the |ead, he added.

8:37:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD said she rarely agrees wth Chief
Justice Fabe, but "this is sonething we agree on." She asked if
building up tribal courts would be done at the federal, state
or local |evel. She asked if the plan is noving forward and
what the | egislature can do.

8:38: 08 AM

CO- CHAIR NAGEAK said one problem is the lack of a forna
recognition of tribes in Al aska.

M5. LEHR said she could not clarify that.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 8- March 11, 2014



CO CHAI R NAGEAK said that nost of the government in rural Al aska
is tribal. Tribes want to work with the state, but "there is
sone di sconnect there sonewhere."”

M5. LEHR said the state does recognize that there are federally

recogni zed tribes in Al aska. The issue tends to be around
ownership of land and not having a reservation system in place.
She added, "The state wunderstands that there are federally

recognized tribes, but that doesn't necessarily solve any
probl em "

MR. EID noted that the state does not currently recogni ze Al aska
Native nations on a government-to-governnment basis. That needs
to happen today—not tonorrow, but today. Every other state in
the country does, and every president since Richard N xon has.
"The idea that it is sonehow debatable or optional is a sign of
an ancient era," he opined. The U. S. Constitution clearly
recogni zes these as sovereign [inaudible]. Once that respect is
shown, and it nust be nore than synbolic, [the state should
then] look to [the tribes] as the local governnent and offer to
hel p solve these problens. The effort has to start by saying

"You are a governnment; we respect that; we believe in that." He
said it is not a scary thing to do; it is just part of the
country's constitutional framework and part of who we are as a
nati on.

8:41:45 AM

CO CHAIR LEDQUX inquired as to how that would work practically.
She totally supports the idea of l|ocal control, she said, but
there are reservations in the Lower 48 where everyone would be
subject to tribal law. Al aska has no tribal |and, so would only
menbers of tribe be subject to the law or would everybody who
lives in the vicinity be subject to tribal |aw?

CO CHAIR NACGEAK said that when land clains were settled, the
majority of people in rural Al aska wanted tribes; however,
Congress wanted sonething else and created corporations. The
corporations own Jland, and all nenbers of the tribe are
sharehol ders in a corporation. "Every time we try to cone up
with sonmething to help our people, [it is said that] tribes
don't have land, well, | beg to differ. The tribes do own the
| and because nost of the nmenbers of the tribes in Al aska are
menbers of the corporation,” he stated.

MR. EID explained that, in the Lower 48, when a Native person is
on tribal land or within the boundaries of a reservation, the

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 9- March 11, 2014



tribe has authority over that person for crimnal purposes. A
tribe does not have <crimnal jurisdiction over non-Native
persons on tribal land, and that is based on a 1978 U S. Suprene
Court case, called Qiphant, which was viewed, at the tine, as a
case that would have very far-reaching consequences—and it has.
The situation changed slightly last spring by the Violence
agai nst Wnen Act, which gave tribal jurisdiction over non-
Natives in certain donestic violence cases. It was a tool to
try to address donestic violence, but Al aska was exenpt fromthe
Act . He noted that both Alaska Senators support including
Alaska in that section of the Violence against Wnen Act, and
this topic will come to the forefront in Alaska in the nonths
ahead. It is inportant for the state to begin to think about
it, he opined.

MR. EID said there is a whole body of |aw regarding the Al aska
Native corporations and how they can put land into trusts for
Native villages or as a basis for jurisdiction. He stated that
changing land status or land title would have to be clarified by
Congr ess. "But what |'m asking you to please consider doesn't
depend on whether you change the l|and status or whether you
recogni ze what's already there. Al this legislature would have
to do is work with the Al aska Native nations on a governnent-to-
government basis and come up with boundaries that are realistic

boundaries for |aw enforcenment purposes and for courts.” He
suggested working cooperatively, and it could be a project that
is cosponsored by the state and the Native nations. "It could
be nediated," he offered. It could just be done party to party,
he said, and it would be very simlar to drawing a line for a
borough, township, or a nunicipality. He continued: "You just
draw a government |ine [and] you wouldn't necessarily worry

about who owned the specific |land. You would say, here's a line
t hat makes sense for self-governnent.”

8:49: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER said he supports pushing Alaska Native
justice to the |owest |evel possible. He said he represents
about 60 comunities, and nearly all are small villages. He

asked if some form of justice system could be at the level of a
100-person village, "or is this something that we have to have
at the hub I evel ?"

MR. EID answered that he understands that there are sone very
small comunities in Alaska. He suggested being realistic as to
where to start, and one way would be to focus on where the big
probl ens are. Al cohol is one huge problem he noted, and sone

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -10- March 11, 2014



limted authority mght be directed at conbatting al cohol
possessi on and abuse where it is needed, which could be done in
very small villages by having a tribal court judge that serves
four to five villages. The judge does not have to be a |awer

he explained, just soneone who is honest and willing to assune
the responsibility. The state could deputize these people as
state judges for certain purposes, and they could be Native or
not . "So many of the tribal governnents in the Lower 48 have
both Native and non-Native judges; they hire whoever they need,
or they work with whoever they need to get the job done; they do

it in a way they see fit, |ike other |ocal governnents do." He
said that Al aska |law can be applied when necessary, and judges
can be trained to handle certain types of cases. An appeal
m ght be directed elsewhere, if desired. He said to be
realistic about what can be done now, start with sonething that
is inportant |ike alcohol and extend that authority at a |oca

| evel . Train those people and then over the next generation, a

growi ng pool of people can take on a | ot of other things.
8:53: 05 AM

CO CHAI R NACGEAK opened public testinony on the Indian Law &
Order Comm ssi on Report.

8:53:21 AM

M CHELLE DEW TT, Executive Director, Bethel Comunity Services
Foundation, said she has lived in Bethel since the md-1990s,
and nost of her work has been with the Tundra Wnen's Coalition
addressing donestic violence and sexual assault. She now
directs the Bethel Community Services Foundation, which serves
the community and provides grants to the region. What she has
| earned from the many years working with Native people inpacted
by domestic violence and sexual assault "is that we need to stop
spending so nmuch tinme trying to fix broken systens.” She
expressed that she left the Wnmen's Coalition because of
"systens. " Seeing how systens interact wth people—with
victims—she realized that "we need to stop being so defensive of
systens that exist. Just because there are systens in place
doesn't mean that they're the best way or the only way to
address crime or to interact wth people or to provide
services," she stated. She expressed her opinion that VPSO and
trooper positions could be added "for the rest of ny lifetine,"
but it will not address crine in Alaska's nost rural tribal
communi ties. The nunber of Native Al askans dealing with these
issues is overwhel mng, she stressed, and she appreciates the
report and agrees whol eheartedly with the recommendati ons. From

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -11- March 11, 2014



the perspective of a practitioner in direct services in rural
Al aska, it is tinme to respect people; respect tribes; and
enpower communities, st akehol der s, and tribal comruni ti es.
Al aska needs to consider the [tribes and communities] as full
partners and engage people in |local solutions to these issues.

8:57:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked why Alaska did not fight for
inclusion rather than fight for exclusion of Al aska tribes,
except for Metl akatl a.

M5. DEWTT said she believes that it has to do with land; the
state spends significant resources defending issues around |and,
and that inpacts social policy and the ability to nove forward
on other platforns. There is so nmuch fear about acknow edgi ng
sovereignty and respecting people: "W're digging in on all of

these issues, when, in fact, we need to ... stop being so
def ensi ve about the things that are broken—that are not worki ng—
and start solving sone of these issues.” She expressed her

belief that the state did not want to give anything up.
8:59: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noted that, historically, the federal
government has dealt with Anerican Indians and Al aska Natives
In 1830, there was the Indian Renoval Act, and in the 1970s
ANCSA [Alaska Native Cains Settlenment Act] was passed so that
"we could build the pipeline.” He asked if ANCSA is a treaty
"that sonme Al askans like ... because they were able to get the
oil flow ng. Didn't we extinguish tribal rights, essentially,
for convenience, and now we're fighting against the decision—
which was probably done with all good intentions?" He said
ANCSA is comng back to bite Alaska Natives in the worst
possi bl e way.

MR. EID explained that ANCSA is one of the npbst anmended federa

laws of the last 40 years. It was anended essentially every
single session of Congress for the first 35 years. He said
ANCSA tal ks about there being no wardship for Native people, and
it nmakes it sound |like the tribes were being extinguished or
their rights were being nuch degraded. He stated that the
anmendnents have changed ANCSA, and it is very different from
what it was in 1971. If it had not changed, "then why would we
have the Indian Health Service partnering and providing all of
these services?' There are so many federal roles that support
Al aska Natives, simlar to the Lower 48, which could not exist

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -12- March 11, 2014



if the original ANCSA was taken literally, he added. In sone
sense, ANCSA creates confusion, but it is not a surprise that
Congress can fix it with support from the Al aska Legislature
He stressed his point that the |egislature and the governor have
a key role here. A system was envisioned that would bring out
the best in everybody in Alaska, and it was not necessarily a
deci sion of expediency, but one designed to mintain Al aska
Native identity and be able to have developnment. The reality of
today needs to be l|ooked at, as there is too nuch crine; the
state wastes too nuch noney on central services; and it is not
wor king. He stated, "You can add VSPGs—you can do these things—
but it will not change the structural problem that exists." He
suggested that the bold thing to do is to ook at the structure
and ask if it really serves the needs of nodern Al askans when
the state has grown so nuch and when the crine problem is so
great. The legislature can take a |eadership role, and it
starts with | ooking at the root cause.

9:03:37 AM
REPRESENTATIVE KITO Il noted that there are over 200 recognized
tribes in Alaska, and he asked how a public safety structure

woul d work for the smaller conmmunities.

MR. EID enphasized that it needs to be worked out with state

| eaders and tribal |eaders. He reiterated that the task needs
to be tackled on a governnment—+to—governnent basis. He
recogni zes that tribes are nunerous and nmany are very renote.
The process wll take tinme and attention to detail, he

expl ai ned, but the effort is not happening now, and the state's
posture has been to deny that these are governnents and to
operate out of the urban hubs. The legislature could establish
governnental boundaries with agreement from the Native nations
and allow jurisdiction within those |ines. It should not be a
| egal fight, he added.

9: 06: 09 AM

CO- CHAIR NAGEAK said regional corporations have established
nonprofits that receive lots of federal funding. They are not
recogni zed as tribal entities, but they allow shareholders to
take care of sone of the social ills and needs. Today there is

push-back from tribal governnents as there are territorial
conflicts between them|[and the corporations].

9:07:36 AM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -13- March 11, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON i nquired as to the intent of the co-chairs
in going forward with this report.

CO- CHAIR NAGEAK said he has no idea. He said he wanted an
opportunity to bring it to the public, and it is up for
di scussion regarding [what the commttee does with it].

CO CHAIR LEDOUX recalled that today was to be informational, and
several weeks from now, [the commttee] m ght have a discussion
about things it can do.

9:09: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON referred to a letter from the attorney
general asking soneone to attend this hearing. He reconmended
that the report be held for further consideration in order that
the attorney general can share his views when he is available.
He expressed his desire to have on the record what the attorney
general is doing, specifically, to recognize sovereignty in the
st at e.

CO CHAI R NAGEAK agreed with Representative Herron's suggestion.
9:10: 46 AM

JAMES HCELSCHER, First Sergeant, Village Public Safety Oficer
(VPSO, noting that he is a Yupik Eskinmo from Hooper Bay,
informed the conmttee that he has been involved in |aw
enforcenent for about 20 years in Hooper Bay. He then rel ated
that there are challenges working with the three different
organi zations wth which a VPSO works, which are the state, the
VPSO enpl oyer (which can be a nonprofit or a borough), and the
local city or tribal governnent. He opined that all three
organi zati ons have a shared mssion in that they all want better
public safety. The different organizations have shared nenbers
and long-term and short-term goals. Furt her nor e, t he
organi zati ons have different expertise and resources along wth
the need to network resources across the regions, but the
difficulties [of working wth nultiple entities] i ncl ude
problems with the lines of conmunication, including scheduling
any kind of neeting; resolving philosophical differences between
menber s to achi eve goal s; costs; and obl i gati ons.
Communi cation and networking is conplex and can result in
problems with either recognizing VPSGs or disciplining them He
acknow edged that there can be the perception of duplication of
services when there are VPSGs, village police officers, and
tribal police officers. Another challenge in the arrangenent is

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -14- March 11, 2014



that the stronger partner nay dictate admnistrative processes
that the other organizations may not have chosen, he said.
There is also a challenge in terns of financial information and
control. However, there are benefits, including: the retention
of sovereignty for each organization while having conbined
resources; the ability to reach a |arger audience; an inproved
advice and support system a dedicated focus on mssions
val idated by comrunications; services, support, and stability
from each organization; and a sharing of resources. M .
Hoel scher related that as a VPSO he has felt as if he is being
pulled in different directions and caught in the mddle,
wondering who he is supposed to answer to and what is expected
of him which is stressful and at tines can be nore stressfu

than his calls. He noted that what keeps him sane is the
acknow edgenent that he ultimately works for the residents of
Hooper Bay.

9:16: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked M. Hoelscher to provide his top
three suggestions, in witing, of what the legislature could do
to help streamine the process in rural Al aska.

MR. HOELSCHER agreed to do so.
9:17:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON inquired as to what M. Hoelscher would
request if he were the king for a day in terns of Al aska Natives
bei ng taken for granted by the judicial system

MR. HCELSCHER said he would hope that everyone would listen with
open ears to those educated and honest people who are trying to
address comrunity needs, whether they are VPSGs, tribal police
of ficers, municipal police officers, or Al aska State Troopers.
Sonetinmes titles, disagreenents, and financial issues cause
winkles in the system he explai ned. M. Hoel scher enphasized
his belief that the communities should have the nunber-one say
in what they want wth |aw enforcenment and public safety.
Furthernore, he opined, communities set a precedent as to what

services they expect, and that should be net. As an Al aska
Native living in an Alaska Native community, he expressed his
feeling that sone issues seem to be an uphill battle. In his

over 20 years as a VPSO he recalled arresting parents and
children, and he noted the difficulty in keeping an optimstic
view "with all that we go through,” but becom ng pessimstic or
cynical would hinder his effectiveness in his job. However, he

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 15- March 11, 2014



is upset with the direction Al aska Native people have been |ed
wi th al cohol and drugs, which have contributed to the high rates
of suicide, donestic violence, and sexual assault. He rel ated
his desire for everyone to work toward the sane goal and hold
true to it.

9:21:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noted that M. Hoelscher was born and
raised in Hooper Bay, and he asked how many Al aska State
Troopers he has trained to understand what it is like to live in
Hooper Bay.

MR, HOELSCHER answered that he has trained over 20 troopers, as
well as those who are not assigned to Hooper Bay. He
hi ghlighted that one of the best ways to be accepted is to
understand the community, culture, and its people. He said that
he finds great enjoynment in informng people about the commnity
of Hooper Bay and its people and in having them participate in
[conmunity/cultural] activities, which is necessary to gain
acceptance and trust. In further response to Representative
Herron, M. Hoelscher confirnmed that sone of the officers did
not understand rural Al aska and could not stay, and those few
are no |longer troopers because they could not adapt to that part
of their job. On the other hand, many of those who were force-
transferred out to Hooper Bay and were bitter about the
transfer, enjoyed being there when they really got to know the
people and got to see the culture. Sonme individuals even cane
back on their own [after being transferred out], because they
enj oyed the area so nuch.

9:24: 07 AM

MR. HCELSCHER, continuing his presentation, highlighted that the
resources |acking for VPSOs across the board include housing,
vehicles, and office space, which are essential for VPSGs to do
their job. Oten, one or nore of the conponents are m ssing,
which results in a community not having a VPSO  Even if nobst or
all of those itens are provided, there may be a l|lack of vehicle
fuel and vehicle maintenance, office supplies, heating fuel, or
runni ng water, he stated. M. Hoel scher said he is grateful to
work in a comunity with all those resources (he also pointed
out that he has his own house due to the fact that he is a
resi dent of Hooper Bay); however, the mgjority of VPSOs are not
provided wth the essential conponents necessary to do their
jobs. He noted that he took the job as a VPSO about five years
ago and prior to that was the Chief of Police for Hooper Bay.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -16- March 11, 2014



As a certified police officer he carried a gun. He hi ghlighted
that it <can be <challenging to be a VPSO responding to
energencies w thout inmediate backup. Even with the best of
conditions, the response tinme [for backup] can be hours—and that
wei ghs heavy on his mnd and on the mnd of other VPSGCs to be
al one in situations where nobody shoul d be al one.

9:29:10 AM

SHANNON JOHNSON- NANALOOK, Indian Child Wlfare Act (ICMW),
I'liama, Al aska, explained that Iliama is a hub community for
the wvillages of Iliama Lake. Although there are seven
communities around the |ake, there is only one VPSO in Kokhanok
and one Al aska State Trooper based in Iliama. She related that
she lives in a community without a VPSO, but it has a great need
for one. She told the commttee that she has nine years of
experience living and working in Togiak as an Indian Child
Vel fare Act (ICWA) worker, and until returning to Iliama, she
pursued a bachelor's degree in social work. She related that

she has been a service provider since the late 1990s, hel ping
rural conmunities, handling child abuse and negl ect cases, and
working on other issues related to children. She has worked
with numerous VPSGs in the Bristol Bay area and said they are a
preci ous resource for the small communities. The VPSGCs dedicate
time and energy to the villages, and she wunderstands the
conplexities of the many roles they play on a daily basis. The
buddy system used in Togiak was such that the |ICW worker and
the VPSO would respond to a donestic violence incident, and the
situation wusually entailed renoving children to ensure their
safety. The role of VPSOs is extraordinary, she said. They
woul d have to arrest the perpetrator; help the ICM worker find
hones for the children; ensure that the victins were safe; and
provi de counseling to the famlies involved. Wile M. Johnson-
Nanal ook got to go honme to her famly, the VSPO had to go back
to work and guard the offender and file reports. Additionally,
VPSCs serve various roles from nedical examner to role nodels
who gi ve Dr ug Abuse Resi st ance Educati on (D.A.RE.)
presentations in the schools. Ms. Johnson- Nanal ook noted that
she has been involved with the tribal court, and the assistance
VPSCs provide is vital and much appreciated. She acknow edged
that there is no easy fix to this conplex issue in rural Al aska,
but she expressed hope that these different perspectives wll
provide insight into the many roles of VPSCs and the need to
fill these positions in rural Al aska. She noted that her uncle
was a VPSO who was honored for his heroismduring the floods in
1994, and she can nane ot her VPSGs who are her heroes.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -17- March 11, 2014



9:36: 02 AM

M KE MYERS, Roving Village Public Safety Oficer (VPSO,
informed the commttee that he serves nost of the Bristol Bay
Native Association (BBNA) villages. Al though nost of the
villages are receptive to having VPSGCs, the first question he
often receives upon arrival is, "Who are you coming to arrest?"
M. Mers stated that he tells residents that he is there to
support them and help them to the best of his abilities. He
acknow edged that sone people have m sconceptions regardi ng how
people live in villages and added that it was an education for

him when he first noved to Alaska in 1977. Some of the nost
common problenms in the villages, he related, are alcohol and
drugs. M. Mers pointed out that everyone has different

expectations of VSPOs. For instance, Al aska State Troopers want
VPSCs to be police officers, but the VPSOCs wear many hats, and
he even considers hinself a social worker half of the tinme. The
VPSCs face individuals with nmental health issues, and it takes
days to get soneone to the village to help the individual, he
said. He said small problens lead to Iarger pr obl ens, and VPSCs

m ght not be called until things becone "pretty serious. M.
Myers expressed the need to better educate VPSOs, Al aska State
Troopers, nental health professionals, and physicians. He al so

expressed the need for a better response tinme, such that perhaps
there would be local help in the villages he serves.

9:41: 05 AM

HOLLY  HANDLER, At t or ney, Al aska Legal Ser vi ces, Al aska
Federation of Natives (AFN), said she is part of the legal team
for the Alaska Federation of Natives (AFN). She noted that
Chapter 2 of the National Indian Law and Order Comm ssion (ILQOC)
report discusses the Tribal Law and Oder Act, and she heard
t hat t here has been sonme skepticism expressed about
comm ssioners from outside of Alaska examning and rmaking
recomrendati ons for Alaska. She said one of the perspectives of
the comm ssion is its national exam nation of the Tribal Law and
Order Act, which was not inplemented in Al aska. The conmmi ssion
can look at how the policy of self-determination for tribes in
the United States has inpacted the country and how its inpact
has been slower in Al aska than anywhere el se. It is ironic,
because the Act discusses Al aska as being one of the areas of
nost dire concern, she expl ai ned. She said the comm ssion can
| ook at the progress tribes have made el sewhere and question why
Al aska has been left out. She added that "the conm ssion has
al so exam ned the issues in Al aska being the epicenter of sexual

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 18- March 11, 2014



assault and donestic violence in the country as being not just a
state problem but an issue of national concern.”

M5. HANDLER noted that there were questions raised about the
i npact of ANCSA on Al aska tribes, and while there is certainly a
ot of grey areas in the wake of ANCSA, it has been a |ong-
standing interpretation by federal courts and the Al aska Suprene
Court that ANCSA did not extinguish the rights of tribes. She
noted that there was a question regarding the "practical
inplications”" of not having reservation |ands. The conmm ssion
did not work with a blank slate, she said, and she pointed out
that the bibliography in the ILOC report includes the Rural

Justice and Law Enforcenent Comm ssion Report for Alaska. In
2012, that comm ssion issued a conprehensive report with ideas
for "how this could work on a practical basis." These i ssues

seem overwhel mi ng, but the groundwork has been l|laid by people
who have been paying attention to these issues for nmany years,
she expl ai ned. "One of the observations of the Rural Justice
and Law Enforcenent Commi ssion, that's relevant to this report
here today and thinking about inplenentation in the future, is
just examning the playing field. There is sonme nention of
Native tribal courts and the resources that tribal courts and
tribal governments could bring to a state and tribal
partnership,” she stated, but both conm ssions recognized the
different "playing field." The ability of the state to support
full-time positions is very different from tribal courts, which
are nostly volunteer. The state has paid judges, clerks, staff,
and support; whereas, nost tribal judges work on a volunteer
basis with, perhaps, a part-tine clerk who also serves other
roles such as the local ICM worker or tribal admnistrator.
She stated that there is federal funding for sonme tribal courts
in Alaska, but those are predom nantly three-year grants which
is problematic.

M5. HANDLER concluded by saying that the nost significant
recomrendation in Chapter 2 of the ILOC report is that the
report not be shel ved. One of the nore disnmal observations of
the commssion is the lack of followthrough from all the
previous work that has been done by the legislature, other state
groups, tribal groups, and other commi ssions. So, she stated,
the AFN finds that the nobst significant reconmendation is to
make these issues a priority, including the effort to pursue
gover nment -t o- gover nnent rel ati ons.

9:48: 57 AM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -19- March 11, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noted that he wants to wait and have an
ani mated conversation with the Attorney Ceneral, and he asked
Ms. Handler is she thinks that will help.

M5. HANDLER said the comm ssion and AFN supports nore dial ogue,
as there will be no progress unless people start talking.

9:49: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON inquired as to why there is a reluctance
by this and other adm nistrations to acknow edge sovereignty.
He noted that the Tony Knowes admnistration had the
"M |1l ennium Agreenent, " but nobody "took the ball" after that.

M5. HANDLER said she is not the right person to answer that and
cannot speak for the adm nistration, but she has observed in her
work that there is a great deal of fear in recognizing tribal

gover nnment s. Having discussions can help bring out those
concerns and may allay fears. There are some grey areas, she
noted, where there are concerns about how they will play out.

She noted that there is also "insignificant cooperation,” such
as tribal foster care funding where the state and the Tanana
Chi efs Conference just signed an agreenent so that foster care
funding can flow from the federal governnment through the state
to the tribal courts. When these discussions do start, she
said, people may work through their fears and realize what
resources are out there, and there is nuch progress to be nade.

9:53: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noted that the letter from the Attorney
Ceneral stating that he could not attend this hearing was copied
to others. He requested that the co-chairs wite a letter to
those who were copied and say, "Wy did you not take up the
invitation to be a part of this debate?"

CO CHAIR LEDOUX said she was curious as to why even a deputy
attorney general failed to attend.

9:54: 08 AM

CO CHAI R NAGEAK stated that the commttee will hold the report
until the attorney general and others in the admnistration can
attend. "We will nake that an open invitation," he said.

CO CHAI R LEDOUX expressed her interest in a vibrant discussion
She then said that she once represented the Lake and Peninsul a

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 20- March 11, 2014



Borough, and one of the nobst successful comrunities sonetinmes
nmet ed out uni que punishnents. It was not done through a triba
court, she said, but "the comunity had ceded power to a
comunity adm nistrator, and when people didn't shape up in that
community and violated the social nornms of that community,” the
traditional punishnment of banishnent was used. She asked if
uni que punishnents would be available under tribal |aw She
also recalled that [offenders] in Anchorage were once given bus
or airplane tickets out of town-so it was not just in Native
conmuni ti es.

9: 56: 34 AM

M5. HANDLER acknow edged those as traditional nethods of |oca

community policing in Native and non-Native comunities,

particularly in areas wthout |aw enforcenent. "When there's
sonebody in town that's repeatedly engaging in violence, 1in
boot | eggi ng, in carrying weapons while intoxicated, t he
community often feels ... that wthout an outside |[|aw

enforcement officer to help deal wth this problem that there
has to be some sort of community response, including escorting
sonmebody out of town or purchasing thema plane ticket."

9:57:57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON stated that Nora Guinn of Bethel—+the first
woman and the first Native district court judge in Al aska—dsed
the "blue ticket" a |lot. He then said he is trying to stop
using the phrase, "local control," preferring, instead, to use
"l ocal responsibility."

CO CHAIR NACEAK closed public testinobny on the Indian Law &
O der Commi ssion Report.

9:59: 21 AM

M5. LEHR requested clarification about the attorney general
participating and whether that will be separate from the planned
hearing on the recommendati ons of the |LOC

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said he wants to keep the conversation
going but said he is wlling to wait to have the attorney
general in front of the whole commttee, because the attorney
general's view on the ILOC has to be on the record.

10: 00: 25 AM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -21- March 11, 2014



M5. LEHR said she whol ehearted agrees with having the attorney
general's office and the adm nistration on record. I n closing,
she expressed appreciation to the nenbers for their tine and for
agreeing that this conversation needs to happen.

10: 01: 12 AM

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was
adj ourned at 10:01 a. m

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -22- March 11, 2014



